
           

SAPULPA MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY MEETING
CITY HALL - 425 EAST DEWEY AVENUE

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 2ND FLOOR
7:00 P.M., MONDAY, FEBRUARY 17, 2020

 
MEETING PROCEDURE: Comments from the public are welcome at two different times during
the course of the meeting.  A Sign in Sheet is located at the back of the room. Those wishing to
address the Municipal Authority are to sign in prior to the start of the meeting and identify the
item(s) they wish to address.   Comments concerning items scheduled on the Agenda will be heard
immediately following the presentation by staff or petitioner and Comments concerning items not
scheduled on the Agenda will only be heard under the Public Comments section. The Municipal
Authority will act on an Item after all comments have been heard.

PLEASE COME TO THE PODIUM WHEN THE CHAIRMAN CALLS YOUR NAME
 

- AGENDA -
           

1. CALL TO ORDER.   

 

2. ROLL CALL.   

 

3. MINUTES.   

 

A. Consider approving the minutes of the February 3, 2020, regular municipal authority
meeting.

 

4. APPOINTMENTS, AWARDS, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS.   

 

5. CONSENT ITEMS: All matters under “Consent” are considered by the Municipal
Authority to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. Any Municipal
Authority Trustee may, however, remove an item from consent by request.

  

 

A. Consider approving claims in the amount of $424,001.00 (Refer to: Purchase Order
Claim Register with City Agenda.)

 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS.   

 

7. ADMINISTRATION.   

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding close-out of the Basin No2 & No4 Sanitary
Sewer Improvements Project with MSB Construction, Inc., including approval of
payment of final pay request of $193,981.55, approval of close out documents, and
establishing the applicable warranty date through January 27, 2021.

 

1 of 2 

  



B. Discussion and possible action regarding close-out of the Canyon Road improvements
Design with PEC, including approval of payment of final pay request of $14,458.59.

 

C. Consider approving the Stormwater Management Services Agreement with J. Brooke
Kononchuck as Environmental Administrator for the City of Sapulpa from a monthly
contract rate of $1614.00, to an hourly rate of $75.00 per hour, with zero net change to
the budget.

 

8. NEW BUSINESS.   

 

9. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS FROM CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF TRUSTEES,
TRUST MANAGER, OR TRUST ATTORNEY.

  

 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS: The purpose of the Public Comments Section of the
Agenda is for members of the public to speak to the Municipal Authority on any
subject not scheduled on the Regular Agenda. The Municipal Authority shall make
no decision or action, except to direct the Trust Manager to take action, or to
schedule the matter for Municipal Authority discussion at a later date. 

Please come to the podium when the Chairman calls your name and keep your
comments as brief as possible.

  

 

11. ADJOURNMENT.   

 

Posted this 14th day of February, 2020 at or before 5:30 p.m., at the Sapulpa City Hall, 425 East
Dewey Avenue, Sapulpa, Oklahoma.

Name:  Mikaila Stepp

Title:    Administrative Assistant

 

2 of 2 

  



AGENDA ITEM

   
Municipal Authority Regular 3. A.        
Meeting Date: February 17, 2020  
Submitted For: Shirley Burzio, City Clerk 
Submitted By: Shirley Burzio, City Clerk
Department: City Clerk
Presented By: Shirley Burzio

SUBJECT:
Consider approving the minutes of the February 3, 2020, regular municipal authority meeting.

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDATION:

Attachments
minutes.02-03-2020 sma



SAPULPA MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
TRUST PROCEEDINGS

Meeting of February 3, 2020
 

The Board of Trustees of the Sapulpa Municipal Trust Authority met in regular session
Monday, February 3, 2020, at 7:00 o'clock P.M. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 425
East Dewey Avenue, Sapulpa, Oklahoma.
 

Present: Louis Martin, Jr., Chairman Pro Tem   
  John Anderson, Trustee   
  Bruce Bledsoe, Trustee   
  Marty Cummins, Vice-Chairman Pro Tem   
  Wes Galloway, Trustee   
  Carla Gunn, Trustee   
  Craig Henderson, Trustee   
  Hugo Naifeh, Trustee   
  John Suggs, Trustee   

Absent: Reg Green, Chairman

Staff
Present:

Trust Manager Joan Riley; Trust Treasurer Pam Vann;
Trust Attorney David Widdoes; Secretary Shirley Burzio 

               

1. MINUTES AND CONSENT ITEMS.
 

A. Consider approving the minutes of the January 21, 2020, regular municipal
authority meeting.

  

 

B. Consider approving claims in the amount of $32,449.91   

 
  Motion was made by Craig Henderson, seconded by Hugo Naifeh to approve

Items #1-A and 1-B. 
  ROLL CALL VOTE:  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., John Anderson, Bruce Bledsoe,

Marty Cummins, Wes Galloway, Carla Gunn,
Craig Henderson, Hugo Naifeh, John Suggs 

9 - 0 MOTION CARRIED

 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS:

There were no comments made to the board.
 

Sapulpa Municipal Authority February 3, 2020                                         Page 1 

  



           

3. ADJOURNMENT.
 
  Motion was made by Hugo Naifeh, seconded by Craig Henderson to adjourn the

meeting. 
  ROLL CALL VOTE:  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., John Anderson, Bruce Bledsoe,

Marty Cummins, Wes Galloway, Carla Gunn, Craig
Henderson, Hugo Naifeh, John Suggs 

9 - 0 MOTION CARRIED

 
 

________________________________
Chairman Pro Tem

Attest:

________________________________
Secretary

Sapulpa Municipal Authority February 3, 2020                                         Page 2 

  



 

   
    Consent Agenda    5. A.        

Municipal Authority Regular
Meeting Date: February 17, 2020  
Submitted For:  Hailey Sharp, Accounts Payable Clerk 
Submitted By: Amber Fisher, Accounts Payable Clerk

SUBJECT:
Consider approving claims in the amount of $424,001.00 (Refer to: Purchase Order Claim
Register with City Agenda.)



AGENDA ITEM

   
    Administration    7. A.        

Municipal Authority Regular
Meeting Date: February 17, 2020  
Submitted For: Steve Hardt, Public Works Director 
Submitted By: Amy Hoehner, Legal Assistant
Department: Public Works
Presented By: Steve Hardt

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action regarding close-out of the Basin No2 & No4 Sanitary Sewer
Improvements Project with MSB Construction, Inc., including approval of payment of final pay
request of $193,981.55, approval of close out documents, and establishing the applicable warranty
date through January 27, 2021.

BACKGROUND:
All items of the referenced project have been completed in accordance with the contract
documents and inspected and the city engineer has recommended close-out of the project. The
total cost of the project was $1,495,188.00, which is $55,231.00.00 under original budget. Staff
concurs with the recommendation to close the project, approve application for final payment to
the contractor, accept the close-out documents as submitted, including contractor's claim/invoice
affidavit and maintenance bond, and establish the applicable warranty date ending January 27,
2021.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends close-out of this project as stated.

Fiscal Impact

Amount: $193,981.55
To be paid from: GO Bond Construction Fund
Account number: 83-571-405B

Attachments
Recommendation letter from Steve Hardt



MSB Construction Close-Out











































AGENDA ITEM

   
    Administration    7. B.        

Municipal Authority Regular
Meeting Date: February 17, 2020  
Submitted For: Steve Hardt, Public Works Director 
Submitted By: Amy Hoehner, Legal Assistant
Department: Public Works
Presented By: Steve Hardt

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action regarding close-out of the Canyon Road improvements Design
with PEC, including approval of payment of final pay request of $14,458.59.

BACKGROUND:
Design of the referenced project has been completed in accordance with the contract documents.
The total cost of the project was $237,940.21.  The final invoice from PEC reflects a credit of
$16,735.21.00 keeping the contract at the original budget amount of $221,205.00.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends close-out of this project as stated.

Fiscal Impact

Amount: $14,458.59
To be paid from: Series 2014 Cap Impr
Account number: 63-563-311A

Attachments
Recommendation letter from Steve Hardt
PEC Invoice







AGENDA ITEM

   
    Administration    7. C.        

Municipal Authority Regular
Meeting Date: February 17, 2020  
Submitted For: Steve Hardt, Public Works Director 
Submitted By: Amy Hoehner, Legal Assistant
Department: Public Works
Presented By: Steve Hardt

SUBJECT:
Consider approving the Stormwater Management Services Agreement with J. Brooke
Kononchuck as Environmental Administrator for the City of Sapulpa from a monthly contract rate
of $1614.00, to an hourly rate of $75.00 per hour, with zero net change to the budget.

BACKGROUND:
This agreement is a renewal of the Stormwater Management Services Agreement first adopted
February 06, 2012, between the City of Sapulpa and J. Brooke Kononchuk as the City's
Environmental Administrator.  Renewal of the agreement will provide for stormwater
management services essential to the City's compliance with Oklahoma Department of
Environmental Quality regulations.  

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends Council approve the Agreement and authorize Mayor to execute same.

Fiscal Impact

Amount: $55,368.00
To be paid from: Stormwater Fund
Account number: 29-529-101

Attachments
Agreement



1 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT  

 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _____ day of ________________, 

2020, by and between Jacquelyn Brooke Kononchuk, an individual (“Contractor”) and the City 

of Sapulpa, Oklahoma, an Oklahoma municipal corporation (“City”): 

 

 WHEREAS, the City is an organization which is required to meet all obligations under 

the Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality (ODEQ) General Permit for Phase II 

Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Discharges for Small Cities Within the State 

of Oklahoma (OKR04); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to contract for qualified personnel to handle, maintain and 

manage its OKR04 Phase II MS4 Permit requirements (“Environmental Administrator”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to engage Contractor as its Environmental Administrator 

to perform stormwater management services essential to the City’s compliance with the 

OKR04 permit. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto, for and in consideration of the mutual terms, 

covenants and conditions hereinafter set forth, do hereby agree as follows: 

 

SECTION I.  CONTRACTOR APPOINTMENT AND DUTIES 

 

A. Environmental Administrator Professional Services–General Duties.  For so long as 

this Agreement remains in effect, Contractor shall perform all usual and customary 

duties and responsibilities of an Environmental Administrator, including, but not 

necessarily limited to, the following: 

 

 (1) Preparation and filing of the NOI for the OKR04 Phase II stormwater permit; 

 

 (2) Stormwater Management Plan (SWMP) development and update;  

 

 (3) Preparation and submittal of annual reports (data collection from City, BMP 



2 

update, cover letter, report write-up); 

 

 (4)  Employee training on environmental responsibility; 

 

 (5) Dry Weather Field Screening (DWFS) (Approx. 150 outfalls total / 5 year permit 

cycle = 30 outfalls screened / year); 

   

 (6) Public education activities (preparation of educational material / set up display 

board, etc); 

  

 (7) Illicit discharge investigations and preparation of Notice of Violations (NOVs); 

   

 (8) Site inspections and preparation of inspection reports for municipal good 

housekeeping (6 sites); 

 

 (9) Construction site inspections and inspection report write-up; 

  

 (10) Development of Standard Operating Procedures (SOP); 

 

 (11) Erosion control permit review; and 

 

 (12)   Filing of the annual OKR05 industrial stormwater permit documents for the 

Sapulpa Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 

B. Nature of Relationship.  Contractor is an independent contractor and is not an 

employee, agent, co-venturer, partner or representative of the City in any capacity 

whatsoever, except as specifically provided herein.  The City will not directly supervise 

the activities of Contractor hereunder, but the City shall have the right to establish 

standards of performance as set forth in this Agreement and rules and regulations 

governing the use of City property, which rules and regulations shall become part of 

this Agreement and incorporated herewith, unless Contractor objects in writing within 

30 days after notice of such rules is given to Contractor in which event, either party 

shall have the right to terminate this Agreement. 



3 

 

C. On Site and On Call Availability.  In order to perform the duties hereunder, Contractor 

agrees to schedule appointments at City offices when necessary to meet with members 

of the public during the term of this Agreement.  In addition, Contractor agrees to be on 

call and available by phone during normal business hours (e.g. 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Monday through Friday) during the term of this Agreement.  

 

SECTION II.   COMPENSATION 

 

A. In consideration for such stormwater management services as herein before 

described, the City shall pay Contractor for actual services performed for general 

consulting services to the City, including travel time, at a rate of Seventy-Five Dollars 

($75.00) for each hour of services actually performed including hours in excess of 

eight (8) hours per working day and hours worked on weekends and holidays. 

Reimbursable expenses shall be paid at actual cost incurred, without markup. 

 

B. The hourly rate stated in Section II, A. above includes all of Contractor’s costs, 

including but not limited to, taxes, insurance, general and administrative expenses and 

overheads, and Contractor’s fee for profit. 

 

C. In the event Contractor incurs travel or other direct and related expenses in providing 

services to City, other than defined in Section I, City shall reimburse Contractor in the 

full amount thereof, to the extent that said expenses are approved in advance by City. 

Any expense or costs incurred shall be charged at actual cost without markup.  

 

D. Contractor shall prepare and present to City monthly invoices for services rendered 

and costs incurred and identify time period covered as provided herein. For 

reimbursable expenses described under paragraph C. above, Contractor shall present 

original copies of receipts with the corresponding invoice. City shall pay Contractor the 

amount thereof in U.S. Dollars on a semi-monthly or monthly basis, as invoices are 

presented to and approved by the City. 

 

 



4 

SECTION III.  TIMES OF PAYMENT 

 

Monthly payments by the City shall be based on monthly invoices from Contractor for 

work completed.  Invoices are due and payable within thirty (30) days of receipt. Invoices past 

due are subject to interest at the rate of 1% per month.   

 

SECTION IV.  CITY RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

 The City shall provide as a part of this Agreement the following items at no cost to the 

Contractor: 

 

A. City shall provide attorney's service for all legal reviews and assistance in 

implementing the stormwater management program. Such assistance shall include 

but is not limited to enforcement activities on the industries, responding to DEQ notice 

of violations, consent decrees, orders, or other requests.  

 

B. City shall be responsible for all DEQ permit fees, cost of all sampling and testing of 

outfalls, illicit discharge investigations, field screening, and any other required testing 

mandated by the program or DEQ.  

 

C. City shall make all provisions for the Contractor to enter upon public or private property 

as required for the Contractor to perform the Services under this Agreement.  

 

D. City shall assist the Contractor in obtaining data/records pertaining to the stormwater 

management program.  

 

E. City shall provide an office for Contractor's use in meeting with the public.  

 

F. Contractor acts as the agent of the City in implementing the stormwater management 

program requirements, and the City shall provide all necessary support to assist the 

Contractor in this regard.  

 

G. City shall be responsible for management of stormwater related work orders. 



5 

 

H. All stormwater management related materials, supplies, and travel shall be purchased 

out of the City budget.  

 

I. City shall be responsible for all stormwater related maintenance and drainage 

activities. 

 

J. City shall be responsible for entering stormwater related work orders into City 

approved records management software. 

K. City shall be responsible for assisting with placement of door hangers for the pollution 

prevention campaign. 

 

SECTION V.  TERM 

       

 Unless otherwise provided herein, the term of this contract shall be effective and the 

provisions herein commence _______________________, and such contract shall thereafter 

continue in full force on a month-to-month basis, unless sooner terminated under the 

provisions hereof. It is, however, specifically understood and agreed by Contractor that this 

contract is subject to an annual appropriation of adequate and sufficient funds therefore.  The 

failure of the City to annually appropriate such funds as herein required shall automatically 

and without further notice by City cause this contract to terminate as of the end of the fiscal 

year in which funds as required by the terms hereof have been duly appropriated by the City.  

 

SECTION VI.  TERMINATION 

 

 In the event the City believes that Contractor is not in substantial compliance with any 

one or more of the terms of this Agreement, the City shall deliver written notice to Contractor 

identifying the specific item or items of non-performance. Contractor shall have 10 days within 

which to correct each item of non-compliance set forth in the notice. If each non-compliance 

item is not satisfied within such 10-day period, the City may thereupon, without further notice, 

terminate this contract.  

 



6 

SECTION VII. 

WAIVER, BREACH, SEVERABILITY, ASSIGNMENT, & AMENDMENT  

 

A. The waiver by City of any breach of any term shall not be deemed to be a waiver of 

that term for any subsequent breach of the same or any other term. 

 

B. If any portion or provision of this contract shall be deemed illegal or unenforceable for 

any reason, the unaffected provisions or portions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

C. This contract is personal to Contractor and no interest hereunder shall be transferred 

or assigned to any other individual or entity, in whole or in part, without the written 

consent of the City first obtained. 

 

D. The foregoing constitutes the entire agreement of the parties.  No amendment, 

modification, or deletion shall be effective unless reduced to writing and executed by 

both parties hereto. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed the 

day and year above written. 

 

 

CITY OF SAPULPA:  

 

_______________________________  

Louis Martin, Jr., Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVED: 

 

________________________________  __________________________ 

Shirley Burzio, City Clerk   David Widdoes, City Attorney 

 

 

 

CONTRACTOR: 

 

____________________________________ 

J. Brooke Kononchuk, Contractor 


	Agenda
	__minutes
	       ATT_minutes.02-03-2020 sma
	Consent Agenda__AP Claims for 2/17/2020
	Administration__close-out basin no 2 & 4 sanitary sewer improvements
	       ATT_Recommendation letter from Steve Hardt
	       ATT_MSB Construction Close-Out
	Administration__close out conyon road design pec
	       ATT_Recommendation letter from Steve Hardt
	       ATT_PEC Invoice
	Administration__brooke stormwater mgmt services agreement
	       ATT_Agreement

